References

Contents

2019 North Central Washington Community Health Needs Assessment	3
Appendix A	4
Table 1	4
Table 2	4
Table 2a	4
Table 2b	5
Table 2c	5
Table 2d	5
Table 2e	5
Table 2f	5
Table 2g	5
Table 2h	6
Table 2i	6
Table 2j	6
Table 2k	6
Table 2I	6
Table 2m	6
Table 2n	7
Table 3	7
Table 4	7
Table 4a	7
Table 4b	7
Table 4c	7
Table 4d	8
Table 4e	8
Table 4f	8
Table 5	8
Table 5a	8
Table 5b	8
Table 5c	8
Table 5d	g

Table 5e	<u>C</u>
Table 5f	g
Table 5g	<u>c</u>
Table 5h	g
Table 5i	g
Table 5j	g
Table 5k	10
Table 5I	10
Table 5m	10
Table 5n	10
Table 5o	10
Table 5p	11
Appendix C	11
Appendix D	12
Access to Behavioral Health	12
Page 1	12
Page 2	12
Access to Care	12
Page 1	12
Page 2	12
Affordable Housing	12
Chronic Disease	13
Page 1	13
Page 2	13
Diet/Nutrition	13
Education	14
Employment	14
Substance Use	14
Page 1	14
Page 2	14
Teen Pregnancy	15
Transportation	15

2019 North Central Washington Community Health Needs Assessment

- 1. University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/
- 2. University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/
- 3. United States Department of Agriculture, National Agricultural Statistics Service. (2017). 2017 Census of Agriculture. Available from https://www.nass.usda.gov/Publications/AgCensus/2017/
- 4. University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/
- 5. University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/
- 6. University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/
- 7. University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/
- 8. University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/
- 9. United States Department of Agriculture, National Agricultural Statistics Service. (2017). 2017 Census of Agriculture. Available from https://www.nass.usda.gov/Publications/AgCensus/2017/
- 10. Chelan-Douglas Health District 2016 Community Health Needs Assessment. (2016). *Health Indicators*. Available from http://cdhd.wa.gov/wp-content/uploads/4_Appendix-A_Health-Indicators.pdf
- 11. University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/
- 12. University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/
- 13. Washington Health Care Authority. (2019). *Medicaid Transformation*. Available from https://www.hca.wa.gov/about-hca/healthier-washington/medicaid-transformation

Figure 1. d-maps.com. (2019). Available from https://d-maps.com/carte.php?num car=21957&lang=en

Figure 2. University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/

Figure 3. Office of Financial Management, Forecasting & Research Division. (August 2019). *State of Washington 2019 Population Trends*. Available from

https://www.ofm.wa.gov/sites/default/files/public/dataresearch/pop/april1/ofm_april1_poptrend_s.pdf

Figure 4. Washington State Department of Health, Center for Health Statistics. (2018). *Community Health Assessment Tool (CHAT)*. Available from https://secureaccess.wa.gov/myAccess/saw/select.do

Figure 5. Washington State Department of Health, Center for Health Statistics. (2018). *Community Health Assessment Tool (CHAT)*. Available from https://secureaccess.wa.gov/myAccess/saw/select.do

Figure 6. University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/

Figure 7. University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/

Figure 8. University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/

Appendix A

Table 1

£ United State Census Bureau. (2017). *U.S. Census Bureau, 2013-2017 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates.* Available from https://factfinder.census.gov/faces/nav/jsf/pages/index.xhtml

€ Office of Financial Management, Forecasting & Research Division. (August 2019). *State of Washington 2019 Population Trends*. Available from https://www.ofm.wa.gov/sites/default/files/public/dataresearch/pop/april1/ofm_april1_poptrends.pdf

¥ University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/

§ Washington State Department of Health, Center for Health Statistics. (2018). *Community Health Assessment Tool (CHAT)*. Available from https://secureaccess.wa.gov/myAccess/saw/select.do

O United States Department of Agriculture, National Agricultural Statistics Service. (2017). 2017 Census of Agriculture. Available from https://www.nass.usda.gov/Publications/AgCensus/2017/

Table 2

Table 2a

£ University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/

€ Chelan-Douglas Health District 2016 Community Health Needs Assessment. (2016). *Health Indicators*. Available from http://cdhd.wa.gov/wp-content/uploads/4 Appendix-A Health-Indicators.pdf

¥ United State Census Bureau. (2017). *U.S. Census Bureau, 2009-2013 and 2013-2017 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates*. Available from https://factfinder.census.gov/faces/nav/jsf/pages/index.xhtml

§ United for ALICE. (2016). Washington State Level Details. Available from https://www.unitedforalice.org/washington

Table 2b

United States Census Bureau. (2013-2017). *My Tribal Area*. Available from https://www.census.gov/tribal/

Table 2c

University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/

Table 2d

University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/

Table 2e

University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/

Table 2f

£ University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/

€ United States Department of Agriculture, Economic Research Service. (2015). Food Environment Atlas. Available at https://www.ers.usda.gov/data-products/food-environment-atlas/

¹ Gallagher, Mari. "USDA Defines Food Deserts." *American Nutrition Association*. Available at http://americannutritionassociation.org/newsletter/usda-defines-food-deserts

Table 2g

£ University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/

€ United State Census Bureau. (2013). *U.S. Census Bureau, 2009-2013 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates*. Available from https://factfinder.census.gov/faces/nav/jsf/pages/index.xhtml

¥ Washington State Department of Health. (2016). Washington Tracking Network. Available from https://fortress.wa.gov/doh/wtn/WTNPortal/

Table 2h

University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/

Table 2i

£ Washington State Health Care Authority, Analytics Research & Measurement (ARM) Dashboard Suite. (2018). *Washington State Medicaid Explorer*. Available from https://www.hca.wa.gov/about-hca/healthier-washington/data-dashboards

€ United State Census Bureau. (2016). *U.S. Census Bureau, 2011-2015 and 2012-2016*American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates. Available from https://factfinder.census.gov/faces/nav/jsf/pages/index.xhtml

¥ University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/

Table 2j

£ University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/

€ University of Washington, Runstad Department of Real Estate. (2018). Washington State Housing Market. Available from http://realestate.washington.edu/research/wcrer/housing-reports/

¥ United State Census Bureau. (2017). *U.S. Census Bureau, 2009-2013 and 2013-2017 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates*. Available from https://factfinder.census.gov/faces/nav/jsf/pages/index.xhtml

Table 2k

Washington State Department of Commerce Annual Point-in-Time Count. (2018). *Count Results*. Available from https://www.commerce.wa.gov/serving-communities/homelessness/annual-point-time-count/

² City of Wenatchee. (November 2015). *Chelan-Douglas 2015 Homeless Action Plan*. Available from https://www.wenatcheewa.gov/home/showdocument?id=11970

Table 2l

Washington State Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction. (2018). *Homeless Education Student Data*. Available from https://www.k12.wa.us/student-success/access-opportunity-education/homeless-education/homeless-education-student-data

³ Washington State Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction. (2018). *Homeless Education*. Available from https://www.k12.wa.us/student-success/access-opportunity-education/homeless-education

Table 2m

University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/

Table 2n

Washington State Healthy Youth Survey. (2018). *Frequency Reports*. Available from https://www.askhys.net/Reports

Table 3

£ Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2019). *Environmental Public Health Tracking Network*. Available from https://ephtracking.cdc.gov/DataExplorer/#/

€ Washington State Department of Health. (2016). Washington Tracking Network. Available from https://fortress.wa.gov/doh/wtn/WTNPortal/

¥ University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/

Table 4

Table 4a

£ University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/

€ University of Wisconsin Population Health Institute. (2019). County Health Rankings and Roadmaps. Available from https://www.countyhealthrankings.org/

¥ Washington State Department of Health. (2016). Washington Tracking Network. Available from https://fortress.wa.gov/doh/wtn/WTNPortal/

§ Washington State Department of Health, Center for Health Statistics. (2018). *Community Health Assessment Tool (CHAT)*. Available from https://secureaccess.wa.gov/myAccess/saw/select.do

Table 4b

University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/

Table 4c

£ University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/

€ Gattman, N.E., McCarty, R.L., Balassa, A., Skillman, S.M. (2017). Washington State Behavioral Health Workforce Assessment. Olympia, WA: Washington Workforce Training and Education Coordinating Board. Available from http://www.wtb.wa.gov/Documents/WABehavioralHealthWorkforceAssessment-2016-17.pdf

¥ Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration. (2019). *Behavioral Health Treatment Services Locator*. Available from https://findtreatment.samhsa.gov/

Table 4d

£ University of Wisconsin Population Health Institute. (2019). *County Health Rankings and Roadmaps*. Available from https://www.countyhealthrankings.org/

€ University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/

¥ Washington State Department of Health, Center for Health Statistics. (2018). Community Health Assessment Tool (CHAT). Available from https://secureaccess.wa.gov/myAccess/saw/select.do

§ Washington State Department of Health. (2016). Washington Tracking Network. Available from https://fortress.wa.gov/doh/wtn/WTNPortal/

Table 4e

Washington State Department of Health. (2018). *Comprehensive Hospital Abstract Reporting System (CHARS) Payer Census*. Available from

https://www.doh.wa.gov/DataandStatisticalReports/HealthcareinWashington/HospitalandPatientData/HospitalDischargeDataCHARS/CHARSReports

Table 4f

£ University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/

€ Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2015). *Interactive Atlas of Heart Disease and Stroke Tables*. Available from https://www.cdc.gov/dhdsp/maps/atlas/index.htm

¥ Washington State Department of Health, Center for Health Statistics. (2018). Community Health Assessment Tool (CHAT). Available from https://secureaccess.wa.gov/myAccess/saw/select.do

Table 5

Table 5a

Washington State Department of Health, Center for Health Statistics. (2018). *Community Health Assessment Tool (CHAT)*. Available from https://secureaccess.wa.gov/myAccess/saw/select.do

Table 5b

Washington State Department of Health, Center for Health Statistics. (2018). *Community Health Assessment Tool (CHAT)*. Available from https://secureaccess.wa.gov/myAccess/saw/select.do

Table 5c

£ Washington State Department of Health, Center for Health Statistics. (2018). *Community Health Assessment Tool (CHAT)*. Available from https://secureaccess.wa.gov/myAccess/saw/select.do

€ University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/

Table 5d

£ Washington State Department of Health. (2017). *Washington Tracking Network*. Available from https://fortress.wa.gov/doh/wtn/WTNPortal/

€ Washington State Department of Health, Center for Health Statistics. (2018). *Community Health Assessment Tool (CHAT)*. Available from https://secureaccess.wa.gov/myAccess/saw/select.do

¥ University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/

Table 5e

£ Washington State Healthy Youth Survey. (2018). *Frequency Reports*. Available from https://www.askhys.net/Reports

€ University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/

¥ Washington State Department of Health, Center for Health Statistics. (2018). Community Health Assessment Tool (CHAT). Available from https://secureaccess.wa.gov/myAccess/saw/select.do

Table 5f

University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/

Table 5g

University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/

Table 5h

£ University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/

Table 5i

University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/

Table 5i

£ Washington State Department of Health. (2017). Washington Tracking Network. Available from https://fortress.wa.gov/doh/wtn/WTNPortal/

€ University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/

¥ Washington State Department of Health, Center for Health Statistics. (2018). Community Health Assessment Tool (CHAT). Available from https://secureaccess.wa.gov/myAccess/saw/select.do

Table 5k

£ Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, National Center for Health Statistics, CDC WONDER. (December 2018). *Underlying Cause of Death 1999-2017*. Available from https://wonder.cdc.gov/ucd-icd10.html

€ Washington State Department of Health, Center for Health Statistics. (2018). Community Health Assessment Tool (CHAT). Available from https://secureaccess.wa.gov/myAccess/saw/select.do

¥ University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/

§ Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2016). *Interactive Atlas of Heart Disease and Stroke Tables*. Available from https://www.cdc.gov/dhdsp/maps/atlas/index.htm

O Washington State Department of Health. (2017). *Chronic Disease Profiles*. Available from https://www.doh.wa.gov/DataandStatisticalReports/DiseasesandChronicConditions/ChronicDiseaseProfiles

Table 51

£ Washington State Department of Health, Center for Health Statistics. (2018). *Community Health Assessment Tool (CHAT)*. Available from https://secureaccess.wa.gov/myAccess/saw/select.do

Table 5m

Washington State Department of Health, Center for Health Statistics. (2018). *Community Health Assessment Tool (CHAT)*. Available from https://secureaccess.wa.gov/myAccess/saw/select.do

Table 5n

£ University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/

€ Washington State Department of Health, Center for Health Statistics. (2018). Community Health Assessment Tool (CHAT). Available from https://secureaccess.wa.gov/myAccess/saw/select.do

Table 50

£ University of Wisconsin Population Health Institute. (2019). *County Health Rankings and Roadmaps*. Available from https://www.countyhealthrankings.org/

€ Washington State Department of Health. (2017). Washington Tracking Network. Available from https://fortress.wa.gov/doh/wtn/WTNPortal/

¥ University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/

§ Washington State Healthy Youth Survey. (2018). *Frequency Reports*. Available from https://www.askhys.net/Reports

Table 5p

£ Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, National Center for HIV/AIDS, Viral Hepatitis, STD, and TB Prevention. (2016). NCHHSTP AtlasPlus. Available from https://www.cdc.gov/nchhstp/atlas/index.htm

Appendix C

Citations are in the order used in Appendix C.

Rasmussen, E., Roark, C., Rock, J., Sirotzki, A., Streeter, M., Thai, N., ... Wagener-Sobrero, G. (2017). Community Feedback for Kiwanis Methow Park and Future 9th Street Park. Community Feedback for Kiwanis Methow Park and Future 9th Street Park. Trust for Public Land and University of Washington's Community Oriented Public Health Practice Program.

Fenton, R. (2018). *Grant County Community Health Assessment*. *Grant County Community Health Assessment*. REACH Pathway.

Coulee Medical Center. (2017). Coulee Medical Center 2017-2020 Community Health Needs Assessment & Implementation Plan. Coulee Medical Center 2017-2020 Community Health Needs Assessment & Implementation Plan.

Timchalk, C., & Bowden, R. (2018). *Methow Valley Community Health Needs Assessment*. *Methow Valley Community Health Needs Assessment*. Methow Valley Health Care Network.

Maher, S. (2019). Chelan Douglas Community Action Council Community Needs Assessment Report. Chelan Douglas Community Action Council Community Needs Assessment Report. Chelan-Douglas Community Action Council.

Our Valley, Our Future. (2017). Workforce Needs Assessment Report.

Suval, S. (2018). 2018 Stakeholder Survey Data Report. 2018 Stakeholder Survey Data Report. North Central Accountable Community of Health.

Our Valley, Our Future. (2017). Synopsis of the Our Valley, Our Future Regional Housing Survey Results.

WSU Elson S Floyd College of Medicine. (2018). WSU Mobile Medicine Needs Assessment Summary.

Chelan-Douglas Counties Outdoor Recreation Study Steering Committee. (2017). *The Economic Importance of Outdoor Recreation in Chelan and Douglas Counties, WA*.

North Central Washington Family, Youth, & System Partner Round Table (FYSPRT) . (2018). *Regional Needs Assessment*.

North Central Washington Family, Youth, & System Partner Round Table (FYSPRT) . (2018). 2018 Local Needs Assessment - Grant County.

Chelan-Douglas Transportation Council. (2018). Coordinated Public Transit - Human Services Transportation Plan. Coordinated Public Transit - Human Services Transportation Plan.

North Central Washington Mobility Council. (2018). Transportation Needs Assessment Survey.

Appendix D

Access to Behavioral Health

Page 1

- (1) University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/
- (2) University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/

Page 2

- (1) Washington State Healthy Youth Survey. (2018). *Frequency Reports*. Available from https://www.askhys.net/Reports
- (2) Washington State Healthy Youth Survey. (2018). *Frequency Reports*. Available from https://www.askhys.net/Reports
- (3) Washington State Healthy Youth Survey. (2018). *Frequency Reports*. Available from https://www.askhys.net/Reports

Access to Care

Page 1

- (1) Washington State Department of Health. (2016). *Washington Tracking Network*. Available from https://fortress.wa.gov/doh/wtn/WTNPortal/
- (2) University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/

Page 2

- (1) University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/
- (2) Washington State Department of Health. (2016). *Washington Tracking Network*. Available from https://fortress.wa.gov/doh/wtn/WTNPortal/
- (3) University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/
- (4) University of Wisconsin Population Health Institute. (2019). *County Health Rankings and Roadmaps*. Available from https://www.countyhealthrankings.org/
- (5) Washington State Department of Health, Center for Health Statistics. (2018). *Community Health Assessment Tool (CHAT)*. Available from https://secureaccess.wa.gov/myAccess/saw/select.do
- (6) University of Wisconsin Population Health Institute. (2019). *County Health Rankings and Roadmaps*. Available from https://www.countyhealthrankings.org/

Affordable Housing

- (1) University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/
- (2) Maqbool, N., Viveiros J., & Ault M. (2015). *The Impact of Affordable Housing on Health: A Research Study*. Center for Housing Policy. Available from https://www.rupco.org/wp-

- <u>content/uploads/pdfs/The-Impacts-of-Affordable-Housing-on-Health-CenterforHousingPolicy-Maqbool.etal.pdf</u>
- (3) Healthy People 2020. (2019). *Social Determinants of Health*. Available from https://www.healthypeople.gov/2020/topics-objectives/topic/social-determinants-of-health
- (4) University of Washington, Runstad Department of Real Estate. (2018). Washington State Housing Market. Available from http://realestate.washington.edu/research/wcrer/housing-reports/
- (5) University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/

Chronic Disease

Page 1

- (1) Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, National Center for Chronic Disease Prevention and Health. (2019). *Health and Economic Costs of Chronic Disease*. Available from https://www.cdc.gov/chronicdisease/about/costs/index.htm
- (2) Washington State Healthy Youth Survey. (2018). *Frequency Reports*. Available from https://www.askhys.net/Reports
- (3) Washington State Department of Health, Center for Health Statistics. (2018). *Community Health Assessment Tool (CHAT)*. Available from https://secureaccess.wa.gov/myAccess/saw/select.do

Page 2

- (1) University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/
- (2) Washington State Department of Health, Center for Health Statistics. (2018). *Community Health Assessment Tool (CHAT)*. Available from https://secureaccess.wa.gov/myAccess/saw/select.do
- (3) University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/
- (4) Washington State Department of Health, Center for Health Statistics. (2018). *Community Health Assessment Tool (CHAT)*. Available from https://secureaccess.wa.gov/myAccess/saw/select.do

Diet/Nutrition

- (1) Washington State Department of Health, Center for Health Statistics. (2018). *Community Health Assessment Tool (CHAT)*. Available from https://secureaccess.wa.gov/myAccess/saw/select.do
- (2) U.S Department of Health & Human Services, President's Council on Sports, Fitness, & Nutrition. (2017). *Importance of Good Nutrition*. Available from https://www.hhs.gov/fitness/eat-healthy/importance-of-good-nutrition/index.html
- (3) Healthy People 2020. (2019). *Social Determinants of Health*. Available from https://www.healthypeople.gov/2020/topics-objectives/topic/social-determinants-of-health
- (4) University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/
- (5) United States Department of Agriculture, Economic Research Service. (2015). *Food Environment Atlas.* Available at https://www.ers.usda.gov/data-products/food-environment-atlas/
- (6) University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/

Education

- (1) University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/
- (2) Virginia Commonwealth University, Center on Society and Health. (2019). Why Education Matters to Health, Exploring the Causes. Available from https://societyhealth.vcu.edu/work/the-projects/why-education-matters-to-health-exploring-the-causes.html
- (3) Healthy People 2020. (2019). *Social Determinants of Health*. Available from https://www.healthypeople.gov/2020/topics-objectives/topic/social-determinants-of-health
- (4) University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/
- (5) Washington State Department of Health. (2016). *Washington Tracking Network*. Available from https://fortress.wa.gov/doh/wtn/WTNPortal/
- (6) Washington State Department of Health. (2016). *Washington Tracking Network*. Available from https://fortress.wa.gov/doh/wtn/WTNPortal/

Employment

- (1) University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/
- (2) Robert Wood Johnson Foundation. (2013). *How Does Employment, or Unemployment, Affect Health?* Available from https://www.rwjf.org/en/library/research/2012/12/how-does-employment--or-unemployment--affect-health-.html
- (3) Healthy People 2020. (2019). *Social Determinants of Health*. Available from https://www.healthypeople.gov/2020/topics-objectives/topic/social-determinants-of-health
- (4) University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/
- (5) University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/

Substance Use

Page 1

- (1) Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration. (2019). *Behavioral Health Treatment Services Locator*. Available from https://findtreatment.samhsa.gov/
- (2) Washington State Department of Health. (2016). *Washington Tracking Network*. Available from https://fortress.wa.gov/doh/wtn/WTNPortal/
- (3) University of Wisconsin Population Health Institute. (2019). *County Health Rankings and Roadmaps*. Available from https://www.countyhealthrankings.org/

Page 2

- (1) Washington State Healthy Youth Survey. (2018). *Frequency Reports*. Available from https://www.askhys.net/Reports
- (2) Washington State Healthy Youth Survey. (2018). *Frequency Reports*. Available from https://www.askhys.net/Reports
- (3) Washington State Healthy Youth Survey. (2018). *Frequency Reports*. Available from https://www.askhys.net/Reports

Teen Pregnancy

- (1) Washington State Department of Health, Center for Health Statistics. (2018). *Community Health Assessment Tool (CHAT)*. Available from https://secureaccess.wa.gov/myAccess/saw/select.do
- (2) Washington State Department of Health, Center for Health Statistics. (2018). *Community Health Assessment Tool (CHAT)*. Available from https://secureaccess.wa.gov/myAccess/saw/select.do
- (3) Washington State Department of Health, Center for Health Statistics. (2018). *Community Health Assessment Tool (CHAT)*. Available from https://secureaccess.wa.gov/myAccess/saw/select.do
- (4) Washington State Department of Health, Center for Health Statistics. (2018). *Community Health Assessment Tool (CHAT)*. Available from https://secureaccess.wa.gov/myAccess/saw/select.do

Transportation

- (1) Washington State Department of Health. (2016). *Washington Tracking Network*. Available from https://fortress.wa.gov/doh/wtn/WTNPortal/
- (2) University of Missouri Extension, CARES Engagement Network. *Health Indicators Reports*. Available from https://engagementnetwork.org/assessment/